
NEAL & HARWELL, PLC 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

1201 DEMONBREUN STREET 
SUITE 1000 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37203 

TELEPHONE 
(615) 244-1713 

_____________ 
FACSIMILE 
(615) 726-0573 

NEALHARWELL.COM

March 30, 2017 

Sharla Dillon 
Dockets Manager 
Tennessee Regulatory Authority 
500 Deaderick Street, 4th Floor 
Nashville, TN  37242  

VIA  E-MAIL AND HAND DELIVERY 
sharla.Dillon@tn.gov 

RE: Atmos Energy Corporation – 2017 ARM Filing 
TRA Docket No. 17-00012 

Dear Ms. Dillon: 

Enclosed is Atmos Energy Corporation’s Response to the Second Informal Discovery 
Request of the Consumer Protection and Advocate Division. 

In accordance with TRA practice, I have enclosed an electronic copy, along with an original 
and four hard copies.    

For the use of TRA staff, I also enclose a CD containing live Excel versions of the 
spreadsheets.   

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 

Best regards. 

Sincerely, 

A. Scott Ross 
ASR:prd 
Enclosures 
cc: Wayne Irvin, Esq. (via e-mail) 

A. SCOTT ROSS 

 SROSS@NEALHARWELL.COM 
(615) 238-3524 (DIRECT) 

filed electronically in docket office on 03/30/17

mailto:sharla.Dillon@tn.gov


 
 

 
 

Docket No. 17-00012  
Atmos Energy Corporation, Tennessee Division  

CPAD DR Set No. 2  
Question No. 2-01  
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REQUEST: 
 
Refer to the Company's response to CPAD discovery request 1-3 regarding the 
systematic amortization to the income statement of the $2,927, 113 rate base balance 
offset related to incentive compensation that has been disallowed by the TRA but has 
been capitalized on the Company's books. Please elaborate on the Company's response 
that "…it would be inappropriate to recognize a ratemaking adjustment for the offsetting 
theoretical credit to amortization expense because the Company did not recognize the 
initial theoretical debit to amortization expense at the time of the original disallowance." 
Specifically explain why the Company feels that it is appropriate to recognize a deduction 
to rate base of $2,927, 113 for capitalized incentive compensation, but that it is 
inappropriate to recognize the amortization of this balance to the income statement. 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
Upon further review, the Company will not object to including a ratemaking adjustment 
that decreases depreciation expense for the amount of the amortization of the capitalized 
incentive compensation adjustment for each test year.  Please see Attachment 1 for a 
revised set of revenue requirement schedules which incorporates the adjustment.  The 
Company has itemized the depreciation expense by test year on WP 7-8 and included 
the cumulative adjustment on Schedule 6.  The result decreases revenue requirement by 
$72,044 compared to the original filing.  The resulting revenue requirement, including the 
Reconciliation Revenue Requirement from Docket No. 16-00105, is $6,740,135. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
ATTACHMENT 1 - Atmos Energy Corporation, CPAD_2-01_Att1 - 2017 revenue 
requirement schedules - Revised.xls, 60 Pages. 
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CPAD DR Set No. 2  
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REQUEST: 
 
Refer to the Company's response to CPAD discovery request 1-3 regarding the 
amortization to the income statement of the $2,927, 113 rate base balance offset related 
to incentive compensation. The purpose of this adjustment is to offset the incentive 
compensation that has already been capitalized on the Company's books. However, as 
the Company depreciates its capitalized plant in service, one component of which 
contains this incentive compensation, then the Company is also recognizing incentive 
compensation on its income statement. Therefore, explain how the systematic 
amortization of the $2,927, 113 rate base offset balance to incentive compensation is not 
needed to counter the depreciation of incentive compensation already included in plant 
in service. 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
Please see the Company's response to CPAD DR No. 2-01. 


